
data. As such, COVID-19 point prevalence is highly likely to be lower than in the UK 

for countries which: 

o Are rated low or moderate risk under the PHE analysis, and where PHE have 

high confidence in the data they provide; 
o Have had an incidence rate of less than 20 per 100,000 population for the last 

two weeks; and 

o 

Have had a death rate of less than 10 per 100,000 population for the last two 

weeks. 

Audrey 
email: audrey.macdou ga ll( gov.scot 
If your email requires a response within 2 hours or out of office hours please phone or text me 
no  I.8`S_.-._._._._._. 

From: Chief Medical Officer <CMO@gov.scot> 
Sent: 20 July 2020 11:48 
To: Sunderland RE (Rachel) <Rachel.Sunderland@gov.scot>; Thomson KAL (Ken) (Director-
General) <Ken.Thomson@gov.scot>; Chief Medical Officer <CMO@gov.scot>; DCMO Health 
COVID19 <DCMOHealth.COVID19@gov.scot>; MacDougall A (Audrey) 
<Audrey.MacDougall@gov.scot>; Halliday R (Roger) <Roger.HaIliday@gov.scot>; Chief 
Statistician <ChiefStatisticia n @ gov.scot>; [Redacted 

>; 
Wightman S (Scott) <Scott.Wightman@gov.scot>; Grieve DA (Derek) <Derek.Grieve@gov.scot>; 

Name Redacted transport.gov.scot>; NR
NR transport.govscot> Name Redacted @gov.scot>; Hicks C .-•------ .-----.-------•----- ._.-.-._.-._._._._ _ _._ _._.-._._.---•---- . ._.-._._.-.-._.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-._.-.-.... 

(Clare) <Clare.Hicks@gov.scot>; Griffin J (Joe) <Joe.Griffin@gov.scot>;l Name Redacted 
Name Redacted 

gov.scot> 
Cc: DG Constitution and External Affairs <dgcea@gov.scot>; First Minister 
<firstminister@gov.scot>; Deputy First Minister and Cabinet Secretary for Education and Skills 
<DFMCSE@gov.scot>; [Redacted 

Subject: RE: 10:00 - Call to discuss International Travel 

I asked for a view on the robustness of this data for Spain — there's been a 
remarkable change in the point prevalence from the set considered previously that 
is difficult to reconcile with the public facing evidence of multiple large outbreaks in 
different areas of the country. 

Can anyone offer an assessment of this? I note that this is a particular concern of 
some ministers. 

Dr Gregor Smith 
Interim Chief Medical Officer for Scotland 
Scottish Government 

Room 1E:02A St Andrews House 

I N Q000292564_0002 



Name Redacted Peov.scot>

Cc: DG Constitution and External Affairs <d ceaC~gov.scot>; First Minister 
<firstministerC@gov.scot>; Deputy First Minister and Cabinet Secretary for Education and Skills 

<DFMCSE( ov.scot>; [Redacted 

Subject: RE: 10:00 - Call to discuss International Travel 

I:Cwi1 

Thanks — happy to be the liaison point but also suggest adding [Redacted to the 
circulation list. [Redacted was on the call for [Redacted in [Redacted 

and has 

been speaking to...°acts. 

Rachel 

Rachel Sunderland 
Population and Migration Division I Directorate for External Affairs I 2H South I Victoria Quay I 
EH66QQ 

.-.-.-.-•-.-.-.-.-.-.-•- -.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-•-.-.-•-- Rachel. Sunderland@aov.scot I 
I&S 

save paper - do you need to print this e-mail? 

From: Thomson KAL (Ken) (Director-General) <Ken.ThomsonCCgov.scot>

Sent: 20 July 2020 10:34 

To: Chief Medical Officer <CMO(0gov.scot>; DCMO Health COVID19 

<DCMOHealth.COVID19C@gov.scot>; MacDougall A (Audrey) <Audrey.MacDougall(gov.scot>;

Halliday R (Roger) <Roger.Hallidaypgov.scot>; Chief Statistician <ChiefStatisticianCtgov.scot>;
[Redacted Wightman S (Scott) <Scott.WightmanCct~gov.scot>;

Sunderland RE (Rachel) <Rachel.SunderlandPgov.scot>; Grieve DA (Derek) 
Name Redacted 

NR k)tra nsport. ov.scot>;l Name Redacted 
NR 
> Hic 

(Clare) <Clare.Hicks(@gov.scot>; Griffin J (Joe) <Joe.GriffinCd)gov.scot>; I Name Redacted 
r Name Redacted ov.scot>

Cc: DG Constitution and External Affairs <dgcea~  gov.scot>; First Minister 

<firstminister(@gov.scot>; Deputy First Minister and Cabinet Secretary for Education and Skills 

<DFMCSECa)gov.scot>

Subject: RE: 10:00 - Call to discuss International Travel 

Colleagues — 

You were (mostly) on the call with FM and other Ministers just now. The FM 
agreed to a pause, in which we are to give her advice on the implications for the 
borders review of the non care-home COVID cases currently being investigated. 

We have to do this rapidly, obviously. I'm proposing to write the outline of advice 
to Minsters, and to ask Scott, Rachel, Gregor and Derek to comment and 
contribute to that. Rachel, I'd also be grateful if you would be my liaison point with 
[Redacted [Redacted and with Comms for today's daily briefing, and Derek, 
likewise for the public health interests / inputs. I'll send the draft to this list, plus 
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anyone else you say should see it: for that, please let my office (copied) know, and 
they'll compile the distribution list for me. 

I've taken most ministerial addresses off this for now, but left in PS/FM and 
PS/DFM: I'd be grateful if colleagues there would give us a time and details for a 
further call, this afternoon. It may not be needed, but better to set one up now than 
in a hurry later. 

Ken Thomson _I Director_ General, Constitution & External Affairs, Scottish Government I I i&S 
_---- -I&S ~' dgcea ov.scot I _ 1 N.04A St Andrew's House, Regent Road, ;.-. -- .-.-.-.- .-...- 

Edinburgh EH1 3DG 

-----Original Appointment-----
From: Deputy First Minister and Cabinet Secretary for Education and Skills 
Sent: 19 July 2020 20:59 
To: Deputy First Minister and Cabinet Secretary for Education and Skills; Thomson KAL (Ken) 
(Director-General); Swinney J (John), MSP (John.Swinnev.mso(a)oarliament.scot); First Minister; 
Cabinet Secretary for Justice; 

tRedaded ; Cabinet Secretary for Health and Sport; Chief 
Medical Officer; DCMO Health COVID19; MacDougall A (Audrey); Halliday R (Roger); Chief 
Statistician; ERedeaed Wightman S (Scott); Sunderland RE (Rachel); Grieve DA (Derek); 

Name Redacted I; Hicks C (Clare); Griffin J (Joe); Name Redacted

Subject: FW: 10:00 - Call to discuss International Travel 
When: 20 July 2020 11:00-12:00 (UTC+00:00) Dublin, Edinburgh, Lisbon, London. 
Where: Dial in details in dairy entry 

Ken 

I'm extremely concerned about this. Spain is now being held to a much higher 
level of scrutiny and performance than other countries. If it is not added to the 
exemptions list, ministers will have to explain why not when it has an estimated 
point prevalence rate of 0.015 (compared to 0.33 when the decision not include 
was originally taken) - 0.015 is verging on Green. And there is visible action from 
the Spanish authorities to do whatever it takes to suppress outbreaks (compare 
and contrast with outbreaks in England). It won't matter how much ministers might 
justify it on health grounds, the Spanish Government will conclude it is entirely 
political; they won't forget; there is a real possibility they will never approve EU 
membership for an independent Scotland as a result. 

Scott 

----Original Appointment-----
From: Deputy First Minister and Cabinet Secretary for Education and Skills 
Sent: 19 July 2020 17:10 
To: Deputy First Minister and Cabinet Secretary for Education and Skills; Swinney J (John), MSP 
(John.Swinney.msp(@parliament.scot); First Minister; Cabinet Secretary for Justice;; dada` 

; Cabinet Secretary for Health and Sport; Chief Medical Officer; DCMO Health COVID19; 
MacDougall A (Audrey); Halliday R (Roger); Chief Statistician; [Redacted) ); Wightman S 
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Name .-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-. 
(Scott); Sunderland RE Rachel Grieve DA Derek Redacted H ryR Name Redacted I 

Name Redacted Hicks C (dare); Griffin J (Joe): Name Redacted I.

Subject: 10:00 - Call to discuss International Travel 
When: 20 July 2020 10:00-11:00 (UTC+00:00) Dublin, Edinburgh, Lisbon, London. 
Where: Dial in details in dairy entry 

All 

As per my earlier email, the Deputy First Minister has requested a call to discuss International 
Travel. 

I'd be grateful if you could use the following dial in details and ensure that you are dialled in at 
least 5 mins before the start of the call: 

I&S 

Kind Regards -------N R----- - 
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